





ACT | Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body

# 2017 Election Report







Chairperson
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body
C/- Office for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs
Level 8, 11 Moore Street
CANBERRA CITY ACT 2601

Cc:

Ms Rachel Stephen-Smith MLA Minister for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs

Ms Robyn Forester Director of the Office for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs

Dear Chairperson

#### Report on the 2017 ACT Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body election

Enclosed is the report on the 2017 election of members to the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body. This report is prepared in accordance with section 189A of the *Electoral Act 1992* (the Electoral Act) as applied by the *Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body Act 2008* (the ATSIEB Act).

Section 189A provides:

#### 189A Report of result of ATSIEB election

- (1) As soon as practicable after the result of an ATSIEB election has been decided, the commissioner must give the ATSIEB chair (or, if there is no chair, the Minister) a written report setting out:
  - (a) the election results; and
  - (b) the number of votes received by each candidate.
- (2) The commissioner must make the report available to the public during ordinary office hours.

This election report is available for public inspection at the office of the Electoral Commissioner. A copy of this report has also been published on the Elections ACT website www.elections.act.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Rohan Spence

Acting Electoral Commissioner

28 July 2017

# **Table of contents**

Table of contents	v
Introduction	1
Overview of the election	1
Timetable	2
Nominations	3
Draw for positions	4
Information campaign	4
Polling	5
Staffing	5
Locations	6
Voting at the Alexander Maconochie Centre	8
Votes issued	
Postal voting	10
Review panel	10
Scrutiny	11
Contact information	12
Appendix A	13
Appendix B	14
Appendix C	18

### Introduction

This report on the 2017 election of members of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body is prepared in accordance with section 189A of the *Electoral Act 1992* (the Electoral Act) as applied by the *Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body Act 2008* (the ATSIEB Act).

This election report is available for public inspection at the office of the Electoral Commissioner. A copy of this report has also been published on the Elections ACT website www.elections.act.gov.au.

An election for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body under the ATSIEB Act commenced on 15 May 2017 and concluded on 20 July 2017.

The formal declaration of the results of the election is set out in notifiable instrument NI2017-394. A copy of the instrument is at **Appendix A**. This instrument was notified on 20 July 2017 and took effect on 21 July 2017.

The number of votes received by each candidate as first preferences, and the further distribution of preferences to determine the results of the election, are set out at **Appendix B**.

### Overview of the election

The ATSIEB Act provides for elections for the Elected Body to be conducted by the ACT Electoral Commissioner.

Seven members are elected to represent members of the ACT Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community on the Elected Body.

To be eligible to vote in an election or to stand as a candidate a person must be:

- an Aboriginal person or Torres Strait Islander;
- at least 18 years of age; and
- on, or eligible to be on, the ACT electoral roll.

In addition, candidates must not be under sentence of imprisonment for 1 year or longer for a conviction for an indictable offence.

Eligible electors could vote by attendance at a polling place or by post.

The voting and counting system used for the election is the Hare-Clark electoral system as set out in the Electoral Act. This is the same system used for ACT Legislative Assembly elections, with some modification to suit the circumstances.

# **Timetable**

The election was conducted according to the following timetable:

Date	Time	Action	Section of the ATSIEB Act 2008
Wednesday 3 May 2017	6pm	Pre-election information evening	N/A – event agreed to by Elections ACT and OATSIA
Monday 15 May 2017	9am	Election start day Candidate nominations open	Section 29: 'the Monday, 47 days, before the polling start day'
Monday 29 May 2017	12noon	Nominations close	Section 29: '12 noon on the Monday, 33 days before polling'
Tuesday 30 May 2017	12noon	Nominations for candidates declared	Section 29: 'as soon practicable after 12noon on the day after the nominations close'
Tuesday 30 May 2017	After nominations declared	Order of ballot paper decided	Section 29: 'as soon as practicable after the nominations for candidates are declared'
Monday 19 June 2017	5pm	Electoral roll close	Section 29:'5pm on the Monday, 12 days before the polling start date'
Wednesday 28 June 2017	6pm	Meet the candidates evening	N/A – event agreed to by Elections ACT and OATSIA
Before 1 July 2017	-	Appointment of liaison officers and review panel members	Review Panel - Section 125A  'Before the polling start date for an ATSIEB election, the commissioner must establish a review panel to review any decision made by an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Liaison officer in relation to a claim by an elector that the elector is an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander person or lives in the ACT"  Liaison officers – Section 33 (2A) 'Before the polling start day for an ATSIEB election, the commissioner must appoint at least 1 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander liaison officer for each polling place'
Saturday 1 July 2017	9am	Polling start day	Section 29: 'either - (a) the Saturday immediately before the first Sunday in July, 3 years after the last ATSIEB election was held; or (b) if a day is determined under s29A – that day'
Thursday 6 July 2017	5pm	Postal vote applications must be received by Elections ACT by	Section 136A (2C): 'received by an authorised officer before 5 pm on the Thursday before polling close day'
Saturday 8 July 2017	6pm	Polling close day	Section 29: 'the first Saturday after the polling start day'

Date	Time	Action	Section of the ATSIEB Act 2008
Friday 14 July 2014	5pm	Postal Votes must be received by Elections ACT by	Section 179 (1B), <i>Electoral Act 1992</i> 'all completed declaration voting papers used for postal voting received by the commissioner before the end of the 6th day after the close of the poll'
Monday 24 July 2017	Before 5pm	Review Panel meets to review postal votes and other decisions	Section 144B (3), ATSIEB Act 2008  'The review panel must complete its review not later than 6 business days after the day it receives the claimant's postal voting papers'
Wednesday 19 July 2017	-	Scrutiny commences	Section 29: 'Not earlier that 7 business days after the polling close'  And after the Review Panel meets.
Thursday 20 July 2017	-	Election result declared	Section 29: 'As soon as practicable after the scrutiny ends'

### **Nominations**

The nomination period opened on the election start day – Monday 15 May 2017. The nomination period closed at noon on Monday 29 May 2017.

Candidates needed to be nominated by at least 4 persons eligible to vote in the election.

Nominations were received from 25 candidates. This was the most nominations received for any Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body election to date. The names of the candidates were publicly declared by the Acting Electoral Commissioner at the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Cultural Centre, Yarramundi Reach, Yarralumla, at noon on Tuesday 30 May 2017.

The candidates for the 2017 election were:

Stacey ANDERSON	Jacob KEED
Margaret BLACKMAN	Tony McCULLOCH
Jo CHIVERS	Paula McGRADY
Lynnice Letty CHURCH	Fred MONAGHAN
Diane COLLINS	Greg NARRIER
Jonathan CORNFORTH	Jessa ROGERS
Warren DALEY	Violet SHERIDAN
Dion DEVOW	Clayton SIMPSON
Katrina FANNING	Maurice WALKER
Ross FOWLER	Selina WALKER
Tjanara GORENG GORENG	Darren WILLIAMS
Tracey Lea HARRIS	Andrew J WOOLGAR
Caroline HUGHES	

# **Draw for positions**

The draw for positions on the ballot paper was conducted in public by the Acting Electoral Commissioner immediately after nominations were declared. This was achieved using the double randomisation draw method. A copy of the ballot paper is at **Appendix C**.

## Information campaign

Elections ACT, on advice from and in consultation with OATSIA, took reasonable steps to inform potential electors and potential candidates of the 2017 ATSIEB election. The campaign communicated several messages to electors, including:

- Eligibility requirements to nominate as a candidate;
- Eligibility requirements to vote in the election;
- Relevant dates for the election;
- Locations of polling places; and
- Any further relevant information relating to the ATSIEB election.

The information campaign included the following methods for engaging the community:

- Media releases in conjunction with significant milestones in the progress of the election process;
- Access Canberra silver screens:
- Newspaper advertisements placed in the Canberra Times and Chronicle;
- Elections ACT website;
- Facebook;
- Twitter:
- Whole of government messaging;
- Digital postcards;
- Information brochures/flyers;
- Posters;
- Public events including, community briefing, RAP expo, NAIDOC family day, Boomanulla Raiders football match, Canberra Raiders football match.
- Meet the candidate sessions organised and facilitated by OATSIA (with an ACT Electoral Commission presence) including a session at the Alexander Maconochie Centre.
- Message dissemination via the Indigenous vahoo network coordinated by OATSIA.

The Commission worked closely with graphic designers from Octavo Designs and ACT Publishing Services to prepare the printed advertising materials and silver screen advertising. A new colour scheme was used for 2017 advertising with the key message "Make Your Voice Count" retained from previous elections. Elections ACT undertook placement of the newspapers advertisements through the ACT Government media service provider Dentsu Mitchell.

Elections ACT recommends continuing to conduct polling at NAIDOC specific community events and to continue to attend community events in the lead up to an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body election. For the 2020 election, it is the view of the Commission that work could commence through attendance at appropriate community events and the dissemination of information as early as January 2020. This would bring forward the commencement of activity from May.

## **Polling**

### **Staffing**

The following positions were filled to assist with the conduct of polling at 24 locations over 8 days of polling:

- 3 Officers in Charge (OIC);
- 3 issuing officers;
- 14 liaison officers (who were also issuing officers), appointed in consultation with the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body:

Of the 14 liaison officers:

- 8 were employees from the Office for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs;
- 2 were existing ACT Government employees from other agencies, released by their directorates specifically to work on this election;
- 4 were new employees engaged to work on this election.

The Electoral Commission recommends continuing to seek existing ACT Government Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander employees to work as liaison officers on the election. As in 2016 this will require continued approval from the ACT Government Head of Service.

All staff from the ACT Electoral Commission were appointed as issuing officers for the 8 days of polling so votes could be issued at the office of Elections ACT. Two staff from Elections ACT also assisted with the conduct of polling at a number of offsite polling locations including the NAIDOC ball, NAIDOC family and community day, the Namadgi school dance, AMC, and the NAIDOC on the lake event.

The liaison officers' role was to ensure that only eligible Aboriginal persons or Torres Strait Islanders voted in this election. If the liaison officer determined, on the balance of probabilities, that an elector was not eligible to vote, the liaison officer could formally challenge the voter's eligibility.

Two challenges were issued by a liaison officer over the course of the 2017 polling period. These challenges were referred to the review panel to determine if the eligibility of the elector and whether the ballot should be admitted to the count. See page 10 for the review panel's decision.

### Locations

The location and hours of polling are set out in the following table:

Date	Polling times	Polling locations
Saturday 1 July 2017	6:00pm to 8:00pm	NAIDOC Ball Canberra Southern Cross Club, WODEN 92-96 Corinna Street PHILLIP ACT 2606
Sunday 2 July 2017	9:00am to 4:00pm	NAIDOC Family Day University of Canberra University Drive BRUCE ACT 2617
Monday 3 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Winnunga Nimmityjah (Strong Health) Aboriginal Health Service 63 Boolimba Crescent NARRABUNDAH ACT 2604
Monday 3 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Dialogue Conference Centre 4 National Circuit CANBERRA ACT 2600
Monday 3 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Winyu House 125 Gungahlin Place GUNGAHLIN ACT 2912
Monday 3 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Elections ACT North Building, Civic Square 180 London Circuit CANBERRA ACT 2608
Tuesday 4 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Winnunga Nimmityjah (Strong Health) Aboriginal Health Service 63 Boolimba Crescent NARRABUNDAH ACT 2604
Tuesday 4 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Dialogue Conference Centre 4 National Circuit CANBERRA ACT 2600
Tuesday 4 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Northside Community Centre 2 Rosevear Place DICKSON ACT 2602
Tuesday 4 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Elections ACT North Building, Civic Square 180 London Circuit CANBERRA ACT 2608

Date	Polling times	Polling locations
Wednesday 5 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Belconnen Community Centre 26 Chandler Street BELCONNEN ACT 2617
Wednesday 5 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Winyu House 125 Gungahlin Place GUNGAHLIN ACT 2912
Wednesday 5 July 2017	1:00pm to 5:00pm	Woden Library Corinna St & Furzer St PHILLIP ACT 2606
Wednesday 5 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Elections ACT North Building, Civic Square 180 London Circuit CANBERRA ACT 2608
Thursday 6 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Belconnen Community Centre 26 Chandler Street BELCONNEN ACT 2617
Thursday 6 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Weston Creek Community Centre Parkinson St WESTON ACT 2611
Thursday 6 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Salvation Army Hall Corner Anketell St & Reed St North TUGGERANONG ACT 2900
Thursday 6 July 2017	6:00pm to 9:00pm	The Namadgi School Gugan Gulwan Dance and Awards Night 141 O'Halloran Circuit KAMBAH ACT 2902
Thursday 6 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Elections ACT North Building, Civic Square 180 London Circuit CANBERRA ACT 2608
Friday 7 July 2017	9:00am to 5:30pm	Salvation Army Hall Corner Anketell St & Reed St North TUGGERANONG ACT 2900
Friday 7 July 2017	10:30am to 5:00pm	Woden Library Corinna St & Furzer St PHILLIP ACT 2606
Friday 7 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Elections ACT North Building, Civic Square 180 London Circuit CANBERRA ACT 2608
Saturday 8 July 2017	9:00am to 5:00pm	Alexander Maconochie Centre 10400 Monaro Highway HUME ACT 2620

Date	Polling times	Polling locations
Saturday 8 July 2017	11:00am to 3:00pm	NAIDOC on the Lake Belconnen Arts Centre 118 Emu Bank BELCONNEN ACT 2617

For the 2020 election, the Electoral Commission recommends identifying more NAIDOC specific community events at which to hold polling and reducing or removing polling at some office based locations such as Gungahlin, Dickson and Barton.

## **Voting at the Alexander Maconochie Centre**

Arrangements for polling at the Alexander Maconochie Centre (AMC) were made through the Justice and Community Safety Directorate (JACSD) and the Office for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs (OATSIA). The 2017 election was the second time that polling had been offered inside the prison for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body election.

A 'meet the candidates' day was organised and hosted inside the AMC on Tuesday 27 June 2017. Approximately 25 male detainees attended the men's morning session and approximately 10 women attended the afternoon female session.

Candidates were each given 2 minutes to talk. Elections ACT also gave a short overview of the election and the process of voting.

According to JACSD, at the time of polling at the AMC on Wednesday 5 July 2017, approximately 91 detainees identified as being an Aboriginal person or Torres Strait Islander. Of the 91 potential electors, a total of 61 people cast a vote. These were made up of 17 ordinary votes and 44 declaration votes. Following a preliminary scrutiny, 41 declaration votes were admitted to the scrutiny and 3 were rejected.

#### Votes issued

Ordinary votes were issued to those voters whose names were found on the certified list of electors for the election and whose eligibility was not challenged by a liaison officer. If a name could not be found on the certified list, or eligibility was challenged, a declaration vote was issued. 'Not on roll' declaration voters were asked to provide proof of ACT residence and where provided was noted on the declaration envelope. If the voter did not provide proof of residence at the polling place they were informed that they had until Wednesday 12 July 2017 to provide proof of residence to the Electoral Commissioner. Of the 102 declaration voters, 82 were able to provide proof of residence. These votes were admitted to the count.

Voters were issued with ballot papers as follows:

Date	Location	Ordinary votes	Declaration Votes
Saturday 1 July 2017	NAIDOC Ball – PHILLIP	78	8
Sunday 2 July 2017	NAIDOC Family and Community Day – UNIVERSITY OF CANBERRA	72	8
Monday 3 July 2017	Winnunga Nimmityjah (Strong Health) – NARRABUNDAH	20	5

Date	Location	Ordinary votes	Declaration Votes			
Monday 3 July 2017	Dialogue Conference Centre - BARTON	5	0			
Monday 3 July 2017	Winyu House – GUNGAHLIN	0	0			
Monday 3 July 2017	ACT Electoral Commission Office – CIVIC	4	2			
Tuesday 4 July 2017	Winnunga Nimmityjah (Strong Health) – NARRABUNDAH	0	0			
Tuesday 4 July 2017	Dialogue Conference Centre - BARTON	1	0			
Tuesday 4 July 2017	Northside Community Centre - DICKSON	1	0			
Tuesday 4 July 2017	ACT Electoral Commission Office – CIVIC	0	0			
Wednesday 5 July 2017	Belconnen Community Centre – BELCONNEN	5	0			
Wednesday 5 July 2017	Winyu House – GUNGAHLIN	0	1			
Wednesday 5 July 2017	Woden Library – WODEN	15	0			
Wednesday 5 July 2017	ACT Electoral Commission Office – CIVIC	4	3			
Wednesday 5 July 2017	Alexander Maconochie Centre – Polling for Detainees	17	44			
Thursday 6 July 2017	Belconnen Community Centre – BELCONNEN	0	0			
Thursday 6 July 2017	Weston Creek Community Centre – WESTON CREEK	7	0			
Thursday 6 July 2017	Salvation Army Hall – TUGGERANONG	7	7			
Thursday 6 July 2017	ACT Electoral Commission Office – CIVIC	6	2			
Thursday 6 July 2017	The Namadgi School Gugan Gulwan Dance and Awards Night - KAMBAH	27	10			
Friday 7 July 2017	Woden Library – WODEN	14	1			
Friday 7 July 2017	Salvation Army Hall – TUGGERANONG	10	2			
Friday 7 July 2017	ACT Electoral Commission Office – CIVIC	0	0			
Saturday 8 July 2017	Alexander Maconochie Centre – Visitor Polling – HUME	5	2			
Saturday 8 July 2017	NAIDOC on the Lake, Belconnen Arts Centre - BELCONNEN	37	5			
	Sub-total	348	102			
	Postal votes returned completed		9			
	Discarded ballot papers	-2				
	TOTAL	346	111			
	GRAND TOTAL OF VOTES ISSUED		159			

### Postal voting

Electors who were unable to attend a polling place were eligible to apply for a postal vote for the election. A total of 24 applications for postal votes were received and processed.

A total of 9 postal vote certificate envelopes containing ballot papers were returned to Elections ACT. 7 were admitted to the count. 2 postal votes were rejected and not admitted to the count.

## Review panel

A 3 person review panel was appointed in consultation with the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body to review the eligibility of:

- any voters challenged by the liaison officer; and
- all postal voters.

The review panel met on Wednesday 12 July 2017. Of the 7 postal votes received by this time, the review panel accepted all 7 postal votes, as on the basis of the available evidence, the review panel was satisfied the voter was eligible to vote in the election.

The final 2 postal votes were not provided to the review panel for eligibility assessment as they did not pass the initial stage of the preliminary scrutiny as they had not been completed and signed on or before the close of polling – Saturday 8 July 2017.

The review panel also reviewed two eligibility challenges issued by a liaison officer at separate polling places. The review panel unanimously decided, on the balance of probabilities, the following:

- 1. Challenge issued on Wednesday 5 July 2017 the voter was not an Aboriginal person or Torres Strait Islander. The ballot was rejected.
- 2. Challenge issued on Thursday 6 July 2017 the voter is an Aboriginal person or Torres Strait Islander. The ballot was admitted to the count.

As required under the Act, the Electoral Commissioner wrote to both electors to inform them of the review panel's decision.

## **Scrutiny**

The scrutiny for the election was conducted using the Hare-Clark electoral system, in the Theatrette of the Canberra Museum and Gallery, commencing at 10 am on Wednesday 19 July 2017. Elections ACT staff conducted the scrutiny. Two scrutineers were appointed by two candidates and were present throughout. The scrutiny was also observed by staff from the OATSIA Office.

Two election officials and a scrutineer verified that seals on the ballot boxes were intact before the seals were removed.

At the preliminary scrutiny of the 102 declaration votes, 19 declaration votes were rejected as the voters were not on the electoral roll and did not provide proof of ACT residency. A further declaration vote was rejected by the review panel, upholding the liaison officer's eligibility challenge. At the preliminary scrutiny of the 9 postal votes, 7 were admitted to the count and 2 were rejected.

A total of 111 declaration votes (including 9 postal votes) were issued and 89 were admitted to the count.

A total of 346 ordinary votes were admitted to the count.

At the beginning of the scrutiny, after combining ordinary votes (346) and declaration votes (89), a total of 435 votes were admitted to the count. 3 ballot papers were deemed informal. With 432 formal votes in the count the quota for election was 55.

The scrutiny was completed by 2:30 pm on Wednesday 20 July 2017.

The Acting Electoral Commissioner officially declared the poll at 12 noon on Thursday 20 July 2017 at the Theatrette at the Canberra Museum and Gallery. Full scrutiny sheets were made available at the public declaration and a copy is attached at **Appendix B**.

Candidates were elected in the following order:

- Caroline HUGHES
- Katrina FANNING
- Jo CHIVERS
- Ross FOWLER
- Maurice WALKER
- Fred MONAGHAN
- Jacob KEED

## **Contact information**

For more information on ACT Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body election you can contact the ACT Electoral Commission:

■ Phone: (02) 6205 0033

■ Email: elections@act.gov.au

■ Website: www.elections.act.gov.au

■ The Commission's office:
Ground Floor, North Building, Civic Square, 180 London Circuit, Canberra City ACT 2601

■ Postal address: PO Box 272 Civic Square ACT 2608

Ro Spence Acting Electoral Commissioner 28 July 2017 Australian Capital Territory

# Electoral (Result of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body Election) Declaration 2017 (No 1)

Notifiable instrument NI2017—

made under the

Electoral Act 1992, s 189 (Declaration of result of election) as applied by the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body Act 2008, s 31 (Application of Electoral Act)

#### 1 Name of instrument

This instrument is the *Electoral (Result of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body election) Declaration 2017 (No 1).* 

#### 2 Commencement

This instrument commences on the day after it is notified.

#### 3 Election results

I declare the following successful candidates in the 2017 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body election to be elected:

Caroline Hughes Katrina Fanning Jo Chivers Ross Fowler Maurice Walker Fred Monaghan Jacob Keed

Rohan Spence

Acting Electoral Commissioner

20 July 2017

Number of formal papers: Number of informal papers: Total ballot papers:

Scrutiny sheet

Votes transferred to table 2

$\vdash$		$\vdash$			+				-	+				-	+	-		-	+	100	-	+	-
	Transfer value applied to ballot papers	1	1	-	4	1	1	1	,		1	1	П	-	4	1	1		1/2	1	Ē		=
	Total papers counted	432	2	4		5	Ŋ	00	·	6	0	11	12	14		16	17		4	18		-	19
	Papers exhausted at count	0	0	c		0	0	1	Ι.	7	9	0	0			0	0		0	0	-	>	0
	Jo Chivers	23						1	Г			1	1				1			m			-51
	Diane Collins	17	1											٠	4					2			IC.
	Violet Sheridan	10			T		2	1	,	1		1	1	,	1	1			1	-18	-	7	
	Stacey Anderson	2	-2		T													,					
	Tracey Harris	11								2			1	2							,		
	Jonathan Cornforth	17		,	1						1	2						,					
	Andrew Woolgan	5					τ̈́													,	L		,
	Dion Devow	20	1				Ħ						1		1	2	2					_	-
	Darren Williams	7					1	φ												-		$\perp$	
	Katrina Fanning	44				1		_		-		1	1		1	3	2						
	Lynnice Church	4																			L	1	
-	Selina Walker	9				Ħ					1		-12							m	L	1	2
pouround	Maurice: Walker	26										1	_			1	1			(*)	, 5	1	
-	Jacob Keed	28		ſ	1			2					-		1	2			1			1	_
	Warren Daley	12								-					7	-16							
	Fred Monaghan	27					1						ET.	L.	1	4	m		п	ın			
	Paula McGrady	16			1	2						1 1		L.	1	2 1				2 1	_	1	-19
	Jessa Rogers	9 26			1				_	0					1						L	4	_
	Tjanara Goreng Goreng				1			_		6-		- 71	_	L	1	-	-	-	1	2	-	1	4
	Ross Fowler	9 33			1										1			1			L	_	
	Tony McCulloch	0,			1				_		ኖ				1	, .		-			Ļ	1	
	Margaret Blackman	11				10			╙			7						_	,		,	4	
	Greg Narrier			<u> </u>	-	-5								L.,	7	=	4-		4		-	4	
	Caroline Hughes	3 48			_			-	_		-	-			1	H		_	1		╙	4	
	Clayton Simpson	13			1										1	-	-17	-	-	_	╙	4	
Table 1 - Counting of the choices	Description of choices counted	1 First preferences	NAC after Stacey Anderson 2 From counts 1	NAC after Lynnice Church	3 From counts 1	NAC after Greg Namer 4 From counts 1	NAC after Andrew Woolgar 5 From counts 1.	NAC after Darren Williams	NAC after Tjanara Goreng Goreng	7 From counts 1	NAC after Tony McCulloch Prom counts 1	NAC after Margaret Blackman 9 From counts 1	NAC after Selina Walker 10 From counts 1, 4, 7, 8	NAC after Tracey Harris	11 From counts 1, 7, 10	12 From counts 1, 7, 10, 11	NAC after Clayton Simpson 13 From counts 1, 6, 8, 9, 12	NAC after Caroline Hughes	14 From counts 13	NAC after Violet Sheridan 15 From counts 1, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12	NAC after Violet Sheridan	16 From counts 14	NAC after Paula McGrady 17 From counts 1, 9, 12, 15
Tabl	Count	1	7		2	4	10	u		7	80	6	9		=	12	5		14	15		16	17

21	30			4		2	$\overline{}$	38	
	(1)	36		_	L		ļ	m	
_		+		1/3		1/5		Ŧ	
21	30	36		13		9		38	
-	9	4		4	T	4	T	4	
- 67	7	13		-13	t		t		Т
	-30		t		t		t		
_	$\vdash$		t		t		t		
_			t		t		t		
_			$\vdash$		t		H		
-21			H						
			$\vdash$		t		$\perp$		
m	m	36	H		t		t		
_			$\vdash$		-		+		
_			H		-		t		
_			H				t	_	
			H				H		
- 2	80	LA	H	1		M	t	88	
103	m	m	H	m			H	œ	
_			$\vdash$				H		
_	=	7	H	н		-	H	8	
					H		H		
			$\vdash$	4	H		H	-38	_
_			$\vdash$		H		H		
	2	6		-		ō,	H		
_			$\vdash$						
							$\vdash$		_
_									
_								_	
_					H		H		_
_					-		-	-	_
MAC after Jonathan Cornforth 18 From counts 1, 3, 8, 9	NAC after Diane Collins 19 From counts 1, 2, 11, 15, 17, 18	NAC after Dion Devow 20 From counts 1, 2, 5, 7, 10, 11, 13, 17, 18, 19	NAC after Jo Chivers	21 From counts 20	NAC after Ross Fowler	22 From counts 20	NAC after Jessa Rogers	23 From counts 1, 4, 9, 11, 12, 13, 15, 18	

ATSIEB 2017

Remarks	First preferences.	Stacey Anderson excluded.	stacey Anderson's votes distributed.	Lynnice Church excluded. Lynnice Church excluded.	Lynnice Church's votes distributed.	Greg Narrier excluded (by lot).	Greg Narrier's votes distributed.	Andrew Woolgar excluded.			Darren Williams's vctes distributed.	Tjanara Goreng Goreng excluded (by lot).		Tony McCulloch excuded.  Tony McCulloch's vctes distributed.	Margaret Blackman excluded.	Margaret Blackman's votes distributed.	Selna Walker excluded.	Selina Walker's votes distributed.	Tracey Harris excluded.	Tracey Harris's votes distributed.	Warren Daley excluded.	Warren Daley's votes distributed.	Clayton Simpson excluded.	Clayton Simpson's votes distributed.	Caroline Hughes elected 1. Katrina Fanning	elected 2 (without a surplus). Caroline Hughes's votes distributed.	Violet Sheridan excluded.	Violet Sheridan's votes distributed.	Viclet Sheridan's votes distributed.	
Total votes at the end of the count		432		432		432		432		432		432		432	432	ì,	432	F 2 2	432		432		432		432		432		432	432
Loss by fraction		0 0												0 0																2 0
Exhausted	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 .	1	П	1	2	00	0	80	0	8	0	OC.	0	8	0	80	0	20	0	8 0	8 0
 Jo Chivers		23		23		23		Ŋ		8.				\$	L	1	153	1			×	-		1				3		8 2
Diane Collins	L			18		18		18		18		18	- 1	18	18		18			2			20		20			2		33
Violet Sheridan		01		9		2		10	2	12	1	133		14	Ħ	_	15	1	16	1	17	-	18		18	0	18	-18	0 0	0
Stacey Anderson	L	2		0																								,		
Tracey Harris	11			=======================================		11		11		11			2		13		13	1	14	-14	С				,					
Jonathan Cornforth	17			17	1	18		18		18		18		18	19	2	21		21		21		21		21		21	,	21	21
Andrew Woolgar		5		2		5		5																						
 Dicn Devow		20	T	21		21		21				22	1	23	23		23	1	24	m	27		27	2	29		57		29	29
Darren Williams	7	7		7		7		7	-	0 0	aρ	0													2.4					
Katrina Fanning	44	44		4		44	1	45		45	1	99	7	77	17	1	87	1	67	1	6	3	B	2	53		33		R	S
Lynnice Church	4	4		4	4	0																			-					
 Selina Walker	6	6		6		6	1	10		10		10	Ħ	11	12		12	-12	0											
Maurice Walker	56			56		56		36		56		76	-	77	27	1	38	1	29		23	1	30		31		31	60	Z,	34
Jacob Keed	28	28		28	2	30		30		8 6	7	32		32	32		32						36		36	0	36		36	36
Warren Daley	12			12		12		12		12		12	-	13	13			1	14	2	16		0							
Fred Monaghan	27	27		27		27		27		38		28		28	28		28	33	31		32		36	3	33	0			40	
 Paula McGrady		16		16		16		16		16		16		16		н			17		17				18			1		19
Jessa Rogers		26		26		26	2	28		58		28		28	28	H	29		29	1	33	2	32	3	32		35	2	37	37
Tjanara Goreng Goreng		6		6		6		6		C	1	σ. (	Q.	0																,
Ross Fowler	33			33		33		33		33				34			36	1	37		37		37	_	38	Ü	38	1.4	9	40
Tony McCulloch	6	6		6		6		6		6		6		თ ტ																
Margaret Blackman	11	11	,	11		11		11		11		11		11	11	Ţ	0													
Greg Narrier	25			is.		2																							-	
Caroline Hughes	48			48		49				20		20		25	20		20								57	2	22		55	55
Clayton Simpson	13	13	1	13		13		13		13	1	4		4 1	15	1	16		16		16	1	17	-17	0					
Count	71	r	4		٣		*		·c	,	٥	1	`	00		6		10		11		12		13		14		12	16	17

432 Jonathan Comforth excluded.	Jonathan Comforth's votes distributed.	432 Diane Collins excluded.	Diane Collins's votes distributed.	432 Dion Devow excluded.	Dion Devow's votes distributed.	432 Jo Chivers elected 3. Ross Fowler elected 4.	Jo Clivers's votes distributed.	432	Ross Fowler's votes distributed.	432 Jessa Rogers excluded.	Jessa Rogers's votes distributed.	432 Maurice Walker elected 5. Fred Monaghan elected
2	0	~	0	2	0	~	#	m	1	47	С	t.
8	=	6	9	15	4	19	0	19	0	19	14	33
15	т	82	7	45	13	88	ú	53		55		55
25	S	30	-30	0								
_					ż							
_											_	
_						H						
21	-21	0								H		
_						Н						
30	3	33	m	33	-3%	0						
_						$\vdash$						
53		22		55		ß		55		53		22
_												
_		Г						H				
36	2	38	00	46	ľ	ß	0	15	0	27	00	59
37	Ŋ	42	M	45	m	49	Ħ	49	0	49	00	57
_												
47		4/	F	48	2	S	0	20	0	20	00	28
0						Г		Г		T		
37	-	38		38		98	Ħ	33		33	-38	-
						Г						
44	1	45	2	47	6	20		26	7	22		22
55		çç		22		53		22		22		22
	13		60		23		21		22		23	

#### Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elected Body ACT 2017 Election



# **Ballot** paper



Number seven boxes from 1 to 7 in the order of your choice.

You may then show as many further preferences as you wish by writing numbers from 8 onwards in the other boxes.

# Election of 7 representatives Clayton SIMPSON Caroline HUGHES Greg NARRIER Margaret BLACKMAN Tony McCULLOCH Ross FOWLER Tjanara GORENG GORENG Jessa ROGERS Paula McGRADY Fred MONAGHAN Warren DALEY Jacob KEED Maurice WALKER Selina WALKER Lynnice Letty CHURCH Katrina FANNING Darren WILLIAMS Dion DEVOW Andrew J WOOLGAR Jonathan CORNFORTH Tracey Lea HARRIS Stacey ANDERSON Violet SHERIDAN Diane COLLINS Jo CHIVERS ACT ELECTORAL COMMISSION OFFICERS OF THE ACT LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY Elections ACT